
RFP – DISASTER DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES 
 

Questions & Answers 

 

• May vendors price certain line-items as $0 if the position is not expected to be used?  Yes, but there 
will more than likely be exceptions or deviations to include positions your company may have that were 
not listed. 
 

• Per FEMA best practices, a bid schedule should be balanced to the actual estimated needs of a project. 
There may be one Project Manager per week (40 hours), but 10 collection monitors (400 hours). 
Without adding hours per position to balance the proposed rates, a firm may take advantage of this 
deficiency and consequently score lowest on the proposal but have the highest actual cost post-
activation. Would the County consider adding estimated hours for each position, so that pricing may 
be fairly scored across proposers? This is only one evaluation criteria, we are trying to look at a standard 
40 work week to base the evaluation, understanding this work would typically be more than 40 hours 
per week. 
 

• On page 26 of the RFP, the County states "Any additional extension will be at the same prices, terms 
and conditions." Given the current volatility and uncertainty in labor market conditions, would the 
County consider allowing pricing escalations to account for CPI increases, if additional extensions to 
the contract period occur?  This would require the County to resoliciting the advertisement for bid.  The 
contract is for 12 months with an option to renew for two additional 12-month contracts.  The awarded 
vendor can always refuse to extend the original contract for 12 additional months at the end of the 
first 12 months. 

 
 

• We are kindly requesting that the County waives all of the Bonding requirements as the Federal 
procurement regulations in 2 CFR §200.325 only recommends bonding requirements for construction 
or facility improvements contracts. 2 CFR 200.325 states the following: 

o § 200.325 Bonding requirements. For construction or facility improvement contracts or 
subcontracts exceeding the Simplified Acquisition Threshold, the Federal awarding agency or 
pass-through entity may accept the bonding policy and requirements of the non-Federal entity 
provided that the Federal awarding agency or passthrough entity has made a determination 
that the Federal interest is adequately protected. If such a determination has not been made, 
the minimum requirements must be as follows: 

o A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five (5%) percent of the bid price. The ‘‘bid 
guarantee’’ must consist of a firm commitment such as a bid bond, certified check, or other 
negotiable instrument accompanying a bid as assurance that the bidder will, upon acceptance 
of the bid, execute such contractual documents as may be required within the time specified. 

o A performance bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A 
‘‘performance bond’’ is one executed in connection with a contract to secure fulfillment of all 
the contractor’s obligations under such contract. 

o A payment bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A 
‘‘payment bond’’ is one executed in connection with a contract to assure payment as required 
by law of all persons supplying labor and material in the execution of the work provided for in 
the contract. 
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• No, the vendor that is awarded the contract will need to provide to the County a payment 
and performance bond. 
 

• Section 6.  Are the hours of operation expected to be 12-hour days, 7 days a week?  It states to 
prepare an estimate represented by a typical work week.  A typical work week is 40 hours, we 
understand this type work would typically be more than 40 hours.  This is a baseline to evaluate 
monitoring costs. 

 
• Which address is used for submitting the proposal via Fedex?  There are 2 addresses listed in the 

RFP.  257 Hand Avenue, Bay Minette, AL 36507 
 

• To what level are we to demonstrate ADMS? Are screenshots sufficient for the 
proposal?  Screenshots are acceptable at this stage in the process. 
 

• Section 4. The RFP refers to having a Certified Arborist available. Will this be an additional line 
item to the Section 6—Hourly Rate Schedule? Yes, you can include a Certified Arborist as part of 
your hourly rate schedule. 
 

• Section 4. The RFP refers to the contractor to provide compliance oversight with local, state, and 
federal regulations. Will Compliance oversight position be an additional line item to the Section 
6—Hourly Rate Schedule?  This would typically apply to all work being done, not just one 
specific position.  However, if your structure is such that you have a Compliance Oversight 
position, please add this as an exception or deviation to your response. 
 

• Section 4. The RFP refers to the TDSRS Debris Monitors. Will this be an additional line item to the 
Section 6—Hourly Rate Schedule?  Different bidders will have different position titles.  You may 
add positions to your proposal as an exception or deviation.   
 

• Regarding question #1, we understand that the County would like the monitoring firm to have an 
arborist on their team.  Should we then include a position and rate for the arborist on the rate 
sheet?  Yes 
 

• Regarding question #2, please confirm that your instructions are for us to include a baseline of 
40 hours per week for each position.  This is correct. 

• Regarding question #3, please confirm that we can add the position of Operations Manager to 
the rate sheet. Yes, you can. 
 

• RFP Section 4, Scope of Services, item E (Page 12) indicates that the contractor’s Quality Control 
Program will include having a certified arborist available.  The RFP does not include a position/rate 
for the monitoring firm to have an arborist.  However, from our experience, the hauling contractor is 
usually required to have a certified arborist on their team.  Therefore, please confirm that 
coordination with the hauling contractor’s arborist would satisfy the requirement to have an 
arborist available.  The monitor will need to have a certified arborist available, please add this as an 
exception or deviation to your response. 
 

• RFP Section 6, Hourly Rate Schedule (page 21) requires the bidder to include hours for a “typical 
work week.”  For positions where there will be multiple staff (e.g., monitors), there is not enough 
information to determine a “typical” work week, as the workload will depend on the amount of 
debris, the number of TDSRS sites, the number of hauling contractor crews/trucks, etc. To ensure 
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that all bidders responses can be compared on a level playing field, would the County consider 
providing additional information such as (1) a standard number of hours per position or (2) number 
of anticipated staff per position.  A typical work week is 40 hours, we understand this type work 
would typically be more than 40 hours.  This is a baseline to evaluate monitoring costs. 

 
 

• The Hourly Rate Schedule includes the positions of Field Supervisor (#4) and Supervising Monitor 
(#8) but does not include an Operations Manager.  The descriptions provided on RFP page 16 
suggest that the “Field Supervisor” is fulfilling the functions of the Operations Manager, and the 
“Supervising Monitor” is fulfilling the functions of the typical Field Supervisor.  To ensure 
consistency in how bidders’ price these positions, would the County consider amending the table to 
change #4 to “Operations Manager” and #8 to “Field Supervisor”?  Different bidders will have 
different position titles.  You may add operations manager costs to your proposal as an exception or 
deviation.  This is an RFP not a Competitive Bid where low costs is the main selection criteria.  
  

• Regarding RFP Section 2 (Proposal Guidelines), “Payment and Performance Bonds” (page 6): 
 

o Federal procurement regulations in 2 CFR only require a bid guarantee for “construction or 
facility improvement contracts.”  Because monitoring services are considered to be 
professional services, and not construction, would the County be willing to waive the 
requirement for performance bonds? 

No, the vendor that is awarded the contract will need to provide to the County a 
payment and performance bond. 

o The first sentence in the requirement refers to “payment and performance 
bonds.”  However, the third sentence refers “Performance Bond and Labor and Materials 
Bond.”  Please clarify the difference in language. 

The successful vendor will need to provide the County a “payment and performance 
bond.” 

RFP Section 8 (Contract) (page 23) is titled, “Contract for Construction Services.”  Please 
confirm that this is the correct contract for debris monitoring, which is not construction 
services.  This is a sample contract so all vendors that are submitting a proposal can see 
what wording is included in our contracts. 

• RFP Section 8 (Contract) (page 28) requires that the contractor list the Baldwin County Commission 
as additional insured.  Would the County be agreeable to adding the language: “Contractor’s 
insurance shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of Baldwin County and shall name the 
Baldwin County as an additional insured, to the extent of the liabilities assumed by Contractor under 
this agreement.”  The County must be listed as additional insured on vendor insurance policies.  

 
•     We are interested in learning if the County would waive the bond requirement in lieu of  
       providing professional liability insurance. We understand that based on the FEMA policy, his  
       is not typically needed. Thank you for your consideration. The County will not waive the  
       bonding requirement and we will require the County to be listed as additional insured on  
       the successful vendor insurance coverage as stated in the RFP.  

 
 
 

 


